
  
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION COMMITTEE OF THE TOWN 
OF PINETOP-LAKESIDE, ARIZONA, HELD ON FEBRUARY 19, 2015 IN THE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS.  
Chairman Ahlman called the meeting to order at 9:01 a.m. 
 
ROLL CALL:   Present   Absent    Present   Absent 
 
Chairman - Vacant                       Anne Groebner                  X _     
Vice Chair Joe Petersen    X                   Jim Roeder     X _       _  _        
Rica Girardi      X                Kathy Dahnk     X          ____       
Matthew Weiss     X                              Steve Berman     X  _                           
Mayor Williams      _        X_      Diane Tilton  _           _  X                
  
STAFF PRESENT:  Jill Akins, Assistant to the Town Clerk; Evelyn Racette, Town Manager; John Vuolo, Director of 
Parks and Recreation and Barbara Ashley, Finance Director. 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Sam John, Larry John Wright Advertising; Crystal O’Donnell, Director of Pinetop-Lakeside 
Chamber of Commerce, Lynn Krigbaum, TRACKS and White Mountain Nature Center representative. 
 
ITEM NO. 2, CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  
  
Lynn Krigbaum said the 8th Annual Walk for the Woods would be held on June 6, 2015 at the Nature Center, 
Woodland Lake Park and Big Springs Environmental Study Area.  She said the Regional Science Fair would be 
held on March 6, 2015 at Sequoia School from 10:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.  She said they are looking for judges for 
the Science Fair.  She said if anyone is interested in being a judge to contact her.  She said the Forest Service is 
currently looking for public comment regarding the Upper Rocky Arroyo Restoration Environmental 
Assessment.  She said the Lakeside Ranger District Office has comment forms available.    
 
ITEM NO. 3, CONSENT AGENDA MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING HELD JANUARY 21, 2015: 
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER BERMAN MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING HELD 
JANUARY 21, 2015. COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK SECONDED THE MOTION AND IT CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.  
 
ITEM NO. 4, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION APPOINTING A CHAIRMAN TO THE ADVERTISING AND 
PROMOTION COMMITTEE: 
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER BERMAN MADE A MOTION TO APPOINT JOE PETERSEN AS CHAIRMAN OF THE 
ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION COMMITTEE.  COMMITTEEMEMBER GIRARDI SECONDED THE MOTION AND 
IT CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.  
 
ITEM NO. 5, REPORT FROM THE BUDGET SUBCOMMITTEE ON THE ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION 
COMMITTEE BUDGET FOR FY 2014-2015: 
 
Barbara Ashley said cash flow is good and the Committee is under targeted expenditures by 6%.  She said 
collected revenues are slightly higher than the target by 1.1% and are slightly up over last year in the 
Operating Fund (General).  She said local sales tax revenue collected is up 1.62% compared to last year’s 
collection, and she said the State shared revenue collected remains up over last year by 6.24%.  Ms. Ashley 
said for the 2015/2016 Advertising and Promotion budget more line item detail is needed.  Chairman Petersen 
said Sam John would be presenting at the March 5, 2015 Town Council Meeting.      



 
ITEM NO. 6, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION FISCAL YEAR 2015/2016 BUDGET WORK SHEET: 
 
Chairman Petersen said Town Manager Racette and Ms. Ashley want more detailed line items for the 
2015/2016 budget.  He said, for example, a Website Design/Update line item would be added and possibly a 
White Mountain Partnership line item would be added.  He said he attended the White Mountain Partnership 
meeting held on February 18, 2015.  He said a representative from White Mountain Partnership would be 
presenting to the Ad & Pro Committee at the March 18, 2015 meeting.  A long discussion ensued regarding 
detailed line items for the budget.  Committeemember Berman asked if a miscellaneous line item fund could 
be created.  Ms. Racette said a miscellaneous line item would not be created.  Chairman Petersen asked if a 
line item could be relocated for a different use with Council approval.  Ms. Racette said line item transfers 
could be done with Council approval.  Chairman Petersen said he would like a line item to fund seasonal 
decorations for the Town.  He said he would like the Committee to be able to fund and facilitate group sales 
activities for the Town, i.e., more conferences to help promote and facilitate the Town.   Ms. Racette said the 
budget could be a “wish list” for now with dollar amounts set at a later date.  Sam John said his wish list item 
would be for $10,000 each month for OOTV and OOIA (Online Image Ads).  Chairman Petersen said Mr. John 
suggests taking some seasonal campaign funds or OOTV funds to spend on OOIA.  Ms. Racette asked the 
Committee to be more detailed on the budget line items and add additional line items if needed.  Ms. Racette 
restated the budget could be a wish list and then the Committee would go through and assign funds to each 
line item.  Chairman Petersen said if the White Mountain Partnership is rejoined it would be $20,000 out of 
the budget.  After a lengthy discussion of budget items, Ms. Racette suggested she and the Finance Director 
clean up their numbers now, and again a better understanding of some of the line items and would present a 
new work sheet at the next Ad and Pro meeting.  Ms. Ashley suggested the Committee not add together each 
line item as they go down the list because an opportunity might be missed out on.  She said to get ideas from 
all members of the Committee, prioritize items wanted and then put numbers to the items.         
 
ITEM NO. 7, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION/UPDATE AND INFORMATION BY SAM JOHN OF LARRY 
JOHN WRIGHT ADVERTISING: 
  
Sam John said his goal in advertising is to target people coming up to the Town of Pinetop-Lakeside.  He said 
his goal is to increase the restaurant, retail and hotel numbers and said that is his barometer for success. He 
said OOTV website clicks were up in January at 2429 clicks.  He said OOTV Full Video Views were 226,792 in 
January, and said this was more than any previous months.  He said the OOTV Targeted Impressions were not 
any higher than previous months, but said more people are watching the entire video.  He said the Organic 
Search was about the same compared to December, but said the Website Visitors was up in January.  Mr. John 
said due to the lack of snow, visitors are decreasing and he recommends the Committee to stop advertising 
for the rest of February.  He said it would be approximately $1,500.00 to spend at another time. 
Committeemembers Berman, Roeder and Dahnk agreed with Mr. John’s recommendation.  Mr. John said as 
far as paid advertising goes, he recommends for the Committee to hold off until May unless March receives 
snow.  After discussion by the Committee it was decided to finish out the month of February with advertising.  
Mr. John said he does not recommend spending any funds on advertising in March.  Mr. John said he is 
proposing to include in the 2015/2016 budget Online Image Ads (OOIA).  He said they are similar to banner 
ads.  He said he does not want to take away funds from OOTV, but said to add Online Image Ads (OOIA) would 
enhance the campaign.  He said a lot of traffic would be driven to the website through OOIA.  He said OOTV 
and OOIA are for branding and awareness of Pinetop-Lakeside.  Mr. John said he is bringing OOIA to the 
attention of the Committee now before the summer advertising begins.  He said most of his clients who 
advertise with OOTV are also using OOIA and he said with combining the two together greater results are 
seen.  He said he is suggesting taking between $1,500.00 and $2,000.00 from OOTV and put towards OOIA.  
More discussion followed regarding the advertising budget, budget line items and the 2015/2016 budget.           



 
ITEM NO. 8, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING MARCH EDITION OF WHITE MOUNTAIN 
OUTDOORS: 
 
Wiley Acheson, Retail Advertising Manager with the White Mountain Independent, asked the Committee to 
consider advertising in the White Mountain Outdoors.  He said the publication publishes four times annually, 
Spring, Summer, Fall and Winter.  He said the next edition would be March 24, 2015.  He said the deadline for 
advertising is March 13th.  He said circulation is 20,000 hard copies.  He said it is on the Website and 
distributed in Casa Grande.  Mr. Vuolo said it is great tool for the public and said he keeps copies at the Parks 
and Recreation Department to hand out to the public.     
 
COMMISSIONMEMBER DAHNK MOVED TO SPEND $315.37 PLUS TAX ON A QUARTER PAGE COLOR 
ADVERTISEMENT FOR THE SPRING EDITION OF THE WHITE MOUNTAIN OUTDOORS.  THE MOTION DIED FOR 
LACK OF A SECOND. 
 
ITEM NO. 9, UPDATE/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING VISIT PINETOP-LAKESIDE WEBSITE: 
 
Ms. Racette said four website design proposals were received.   She said the proposals included combining the 
Town of Pinetop-Lakeside.GOV, visitpinetoplakeside.com and pinetoplakeside.com.  She said the proposals 
ranged from $3,200.00 to $55,000.00.  She said a local website designer, Jeremy Francis, bid was the lowest at 
$3,200.00.  She said Civic Plus was $9,500.00, and said she does not recommend them.  She said they are too 
specific to government/civic website.  She said Hinson Media bid was $13,500.00 and said their portfolio and 
websites are very nice.  She said VSFT bid was $55,000.00, and said they are difficult to work with and she 
does not recommend them.  Ms. Racette said she does not know if any of the four are the right choice and 
none of them would have to be chosen.  Chairman Petersen said Mr. John has shown a lot of people are 
clicking on the current website, which stinks, and said the website should be revamped at some point.  He said 
the current website is outdated.  Ms. Racette said she agrees, but said she does not know if any of the four 
proposals are correct for what the Committee and the Town want.  Ms. Racette said in terms of a sending out 
a new RFP the proposal would have to be changed.  She said all four bids could be rejected, wait a while and 
then go back out to bid and the bid proposal would still have to be changed substantially.  Ms. Racette said 
she recommends taking the Jeremy Francis proposal and the Hinson Media proposal, and said to questions 
each company, call their references and look at their websites.  She said then there would be a special Ad and 
Pro meeting to make a decision.   
 
ITEM NO. 10, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION BY THE PINETOP-LAKESIDE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE ON 
FESTIVALS, ACTIVITES, STATISTICS, TRACKING AND TOURISM: 
 
Crystal O’Donnell said the new trade show banners had been received.  She said the Sno Glow would be held 
on Friday, February 20, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. at Mountain Meadow Recreation Complex.  Ms. O’Donnell thanked 
John Vuolo and the Park and Recreation Department for their help with the Sno Glow event.  She said on 
Saturday, February 21, 2015 the Chamber staff would be at Sunrise for the Winter Games helping with the 
Chili, Salsa and Cornbread cook-off.  She said the first Chamber 101 Class would be held in March.  She said 
this is a class for Chamber business members.  She said on March 19, 2015 at 9:00 a.m. to 10:00 a.m. the 
Chamber would have a class on how to use the Chamber’s website.  She said on March 8, 2015 would be the 
4th Annual Putt Putt Competition.  She said there would be nine bar/restaurants involved and ten sponsors.  
She said it is for teams of four and said each team goes to each restaurant and putt.  Ms. O’Donnell said there 
would be a Marketing Seminar from 11:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. at the Holiday Inn on April 16, 2015.  She said it 
would be catered by Rica Girardi.  She said it is the marketing company used by Cell One.  She said there 
would be a cost for the seminar, but said she does know the cost yet. She said the High Mountain Music 



Festival would be held on June 20, 2105.  Chairman Petersen said the Harley Owners group is coming to 
Pinetop on a two day run on September 15 and 16, 2015. He said the group is looking for one hundred and 
seventy five hotel rooms in Pinetop.  Committeemember Berman said on the weekend of June 13, 2015 
PLAC&S would be holding a western music and cowboy poetry event.  He said it would be a half day event and 
no charge to attend.    
 
ITEM NO. 11, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION BY THE TOWN OF PINETOP-LAKESIDE PARKS AND RECREATION 
DEPARTMENT: 
 
John Vuolo said the Parks and Recreation Department is working on the 2015 event Calendar.  He said dates 
are still changing and activities are being added.  He said the Nature Center is holding work sessions on 
Tuesdays and Saturdays at their new building and volunteers are always appreciated.       
 
ITEM NO. 12, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION REGARDING TOURISM ACTIVITIES ON TRIBAL LANDS: 
 
Committeemember Weiss said February had been Sunrise’s busiest month.  He said Tucson Rodeo Week 
would be the next two weeks and Spring Breaks would also be in March.  He said the Winter Games would be 
held the weekend of February 21 and 22, 2015. He said the Adaptive Ski and Terrain Park competition would 
be held in March.  He said night skiing is doing better than in the past due to bonfires, fireworks and other 
added activities.  He said the Terrain Park competition would be held on February 28, 2015.  He said on March 
7, 2015 there would be another women’s ski clinic and adaptive sports events.  He said on March 11, 2105 
would be Demo Days and Sale.   He said on March 14 and 15, 2015 there would be a Terrain Park, DJ 
Competition, Throw Down Party and Pond Skimming.  Committeemember Weiss said on March 21, 2015 
would be the dummy jump, and said on March 22, 2015 would be the card board box race on the bunny hill.         
    
 
 
 
  
The meeting adjourned at 10:54 a.m.  
       Advertising and Promotion Committee 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
        Jill Akins, Assistant to the Town Clerk 
        
 
 


